
  
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
  
2. MINUTES

 2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the July 17, 2024 Plan Commission meeting
 Attachment
  
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS

 3.a. Consideration of Ordinance No. 3852 amending the Zoning District Map of the City of
Beloit for the property located at 2221 Milwaukee Road 

 Attachment
  
4. REPORTS

 4.a. Consideration of Resolution 2024-021 approving an Extraterritorial one-lot Certified Survey
Map for the property located on S. Stateline Road in the Town of Turtle (Christensen)

 Attachment
  
5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

Comprehensive Plan 2045
Planned Unit Development - Casino Project
Zoning Map Amendment - Casino Project
2036 and 2046 Town Hall Road Certified Survey Map
Architectural Review Ordinance Amendments

  
6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Zoning Map Amendment - 1712 Cranston Road (C-1 to C-3)
Certified Survey Map - 1407 Liberty Avenue, 1112 and 1118 Garfield Avenue
Conditional Use Permit - 1407 Liberty Avenue, 1112 and 1118 Garfield Avenue
Planned Unit Development Amendment - 1407 Liberty Avenue, 1112 and 1118 Garfield Avenue

  
7. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs
of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
BELOIT PLAN COMMISSION

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, August 7, 2024

 

 

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - August 7, 2024

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2762756/07-17-2024_Plan_Commission_minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2773680/PC_Report_-ZMA-2024-06__Permanent_Zoning_2221_Milwaukee_Road.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2773705/PC_Report_-_CSM-2024-15__S._State_Line_Road__TOT_.pdf


contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.
 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - August 7, 2024

2



 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
MINUTES 

PLAN COMMISSION 
City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

7:00 PM 
Wednesday, July 17, 2024 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Vice-Chairperson Anderson called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Commissioners 
Anderson, Abarca, Jacobsen, Winkelmann, Flesch, and were present. Councilor Day, 
Chairperson Ramsden, and Commissioner Elliott were absent. 
 

2. MINUTES 
2.a. Consideration of the Minutes of the June 19, 2024 meeting 

Commissioner Flesch moved to approve the minutes, seconded by Commissioner 
Abarca. Motion carried, voice vote (5-0). 

 
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

3.a. Consideration of Resolution 2024-021 approving a Planned Unit Development 
Master Land Use Plan for the properties located at 2524 Colley Road, 2602 Colley 
Road, 2702 Colley Road, and 601 Willowbrook Road 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Flesch asked if the requirement would be whichever sign regulation is 
more restrictive, and if the sign image must be solid for 5 seconds and not be a video 
playing. Ms. Christensen said yes.  
 
Commissioner Abarca said that it was hard to decipher what the difference was 
between what was being proposed and what Plan Commission is asked to approve. 
Ms. Christensen said that some of the signs that are being proposed are not allowed 
by code.  However, the Sign Ordinance allows for the PUD to outline what signs can be 
allowed.    
 
Ms. Christensen explained that sign exceptions are often granted for hotels, as the Sign 
Ordinance does not allow for larger signage needed by them.  Therefore, if not for the 
PUD, the Plan Commission would have received an exception for the hotel. Ms. 
Christensen said that the EVM signs are way larger than the city would approve. The 
site is further away from the public streets, so you would often allow larger signage 
and larger buildings. When city staff looked at the signage request, they were not 
concerned with the size of the signs.  
 
Commissioner Winkelmann asked for more information on the mesh lighting. 

3



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
Vice-Chairperson Anderson opened the public hearing. 
 
Rob Jurbergs, Principal of HBG Design, explained the lighting and indicated that the 
lights do not have a flashing or strobing effect, more of a changing que and color with 
points of light. Mr. Jurbergs said that the lighting will not be used to create words, that 
that would be accomplished with the electronic sign on the garage sign.   
 
Commissioner Flesch asked if it has dark sky capabilities. Mr. Jurbergs said that the 
lighting is designed to purposely aim it down toward the buildings and site.  They do 
not want it to be lighting up into the sky. 
 
Vice-Chairperson Anderson asked if there were any feedback or concerns from the 
airports nearby. Commissioner Flesch asked if they needed FAA clearance or lighting 
related to the Beloit Airport. Commissioner Anderson said that most of the buildings 
out there have the rim lighting on top of the buildings. 
 
Deidre Brady, HBG Design, stated that they are working through the process to get FAA 
approval.  They anticipate they will need beacons. 
 
Mr. Jurbergs explained that the rooftop bar is not an actual on a rooftop, that it will be 
under a sheltered portion of the roof overhang where most of the restaurant is in glass 
doors.  Commissioner Winkelmann asked which way the rooftop bar faces. Mr. 
Jurbergs said that it is facing south towards I-90.  
 
Vice-Chairperson Anderson closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Winkelmann asked about the approval process.  Ms. Christensen said 
Plan Commission makes a recommendation on the PUD Master Land Use Plan and 
rezoning to PUD, and then it goes to Council for action. If approved, the applicant will 
submit more detailed site plans and engineering plans to be approved by staff. Ms. 
Christensen said that all of the conditions have to be met with the PUD final plans and 
then the development agreement will address roles and responsibilities related to 
water and sewer mains.  They were hoping to be in the ground September 2024 and it 
will take 18-24 months for construction. Start date will depend on how long site plan 
and development approval take.  
 
Commissioner Winkelmann asked if there are a lot of other PUDS out there. Ms. 
Christensen said that there are a lot actually.  Any newer multifamily developments 
are PUDS along with developments like NorthStar and Dorrbaker’s. Commissioner 
Winkelmann asked if that allows the PUD to be more flexible. Ms. Christensen said that 
it allows flexibility for the developer, but also provides certainty for Plan Commission 
and Council, since they approving exactly what can be constructed. 
 

4



 

3 | P a g e  
 

Vice-Chairperson Anderson asked if there is any development proposed on the 
westside of the site, the side that is not in trust.  Ms. Christensen said that the plan 
shows nothing on it, and it is a part of the PUD area, so it would come back as an 
amendment to the PUD if they want to develop it.  
 
Commissioner Winkelmann made a motion to approve Resolution 2024-021, seconded 
by Commissioner Abarca.   Motion carried, voice vote (5-0).   
 

3.b. Consideration of Ordinance No. 3846 amending the Zoning District Map of the City 
of Beloit for the property located at 2524 Colley Road, 2602 Colley Road, 2702 Colley 
Road, and 601 Willowbrook Road 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Vice-Chairperson Anderson opened the public hearing. 
 
A resident of 2601 Colley Road asked what was going to happen to the homes nearby 
the casino, if they were going to be staying or offered to be bought out. Ms. 
Christensen said that they own the land needed for the development, and she does 
not think any other land will be purchased. 
 
Vice-Chairperson Anderson closed the public hearing.   

 
Commissioner Jacobsen made a motion to approve Ordinance No. 3846 amending the 
Zoning District Map, seconded by Commissioner Flesch.   Motion carried, voice vote 
(5-0).   
 

4. REPORTS 
4.a. Consideration of a one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 2036 and 

2046 Townhall Road 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Winkelmann made a motion to approve the Certified Survey Map, 
seconded by Commissioner Abarca.   Motion carried, voice vote (5-0).   
 

4.b. Consideration of Resolution 2024-020 approving a one-lot Certified Survey Map for 
the properties located at 815 and 821 Portland Ave in the City of Beloit 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Abarca made a motion to approve Resolution 2024-020, seconded by 
Commissioner Flesch.   Motion carried, voice vote (5-0). 

5



 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
4.c. Consideration of Resolution 2024-019 approving a one-lot Extraterritorial Certified 

Survey Map for the property located at 615 E Cranston Road in the Town of Beloit 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.   
 
Commissioner Winkelmann made a motion to approve Resolution 2024-019, seconded 
by Commissioner Jacobsen.   Motion carried, voice vote (5-0). 
 

5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS 
There was no report.   
 

6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Julie Christensen outlined the future agenda items. The next meeting is scheduled for August 
7, 2024.  
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
Commissioner Abarca made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Commissioner 
Winkelmann at 7:49PM.   Motion carried, voice vote (5-0). 

 
 

 
  
Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 

6



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  August 7, 2024 

Agenda Item:  3.a.  

File Number:  ZMA-2024-06 

General Information 

Applicant:  The City of Beloit   

Owner:  Evan Bittner 

Address/Location:  2221 Milwaukee Road 

Applicant’s Request/Proposal: Zoning Map Amendment to assign a zoning classification of R-
1A, Single-Family Residential District, for the property located at 2221 Milwaukee Road in the 
City of Beloit.

Staff Analysis 

Existing Site Conditions: The City Council adopted Ordinance 3838 annexing the subject 
property to the City of Beloit on June 17, 2024. The subject property was annexed at the 
owner’s request for access to City of Beloit sewer service.   

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  To the north and west of the subject property are single 
family residences in the Town of Turtle zoned R-1, Residential One District.  To the east of the 
subject property are single family residences in the City of Beloit zoned R-1A, Single-Family 
Residential District.  To the south of the subject property is Eastlawn Cemetery in the City of 
Beloit zoned PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District. 

City of Beloit Comprehensive and Strategic Plan:  The Future Land Use Map of the 
Comprehensive Plan recommends a Single Family Residential – Urban land use for the parcel, 
which is consistent with the proposed zoning and existing land uses.   

Future Zoning Classification:  In the past when properties were annexed to the City, a 
temporary zoning classification was assigned until an Ordinance approving a Zoning Map 
Amendment was adopted by the City Council.  

Staff recommended not assigning a temporary zoning at the time of annexation as allowed by 
Section 66.0217(8) of Wisconsin Statutes, but rather to initiate a Zoning Map Amendment to 
assign a zoning classification that is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan if the annexation 

7



was approved. 

Notice of the proposed Zoning Map amendment was sent to the Town of Turtle Clerk, the 
owner of 2221 Milwaukee Road, and two parcels to the east of 2221 Milwaukee Road located 
in the City of Beloit. No other parcels within the City limits other than the City-owned lands 
across Milwaukee Road are within 150 feet of the subject parcel requiring separate notice. 

Zoning Map Amendment Findings of Fact:  Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based on the following considerations: 

1. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property. 
The existing use of the property is single-family residential, and the surrounding uses are 
single-family residences. 

2. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property.  
The proposed zoning map amendment to assign City of Beloit R-1A, Single-Family 
Residential District zoning to 2221 Milwaukee Road is consistent with the adjacent R-1A, 
Single-Family Residential District zoning and residential uses in the City, as well as 
adjacent R-1, Residential One District zoning and residential uses in the Town of Turtle.  

3. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning 
classification. 
The parcel was recently annexed from the Town of Turtle, and so no City of Beloit 
zoning designation exists.  The property was zoned for single-family residential use in 
the Town, and is proposed to be zoned for the same use in the City.  

4. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the 
subject property.  
This area is fully developed in the City of Beloit and the Town of Turtle with established 
single-family residential uses. Eastlawn Cemetery is directly across Milwaukee Road in 
the City.  Any significant development that has occurred in the general area is farther to 
the east of this parcel including institutional uses such as Fruzen Intermediate School, 
and commercial uses along the Milwaukee Road corridor. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION – ZONING MAP AMENDMENT: 
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of a Zoning Map 
Amendment to assign a zoning district classification of R-1A, Single Family Residential District 
for the property located at 2221 Milwaukee Road in the City of Beloit. 

ATTACHMENTS:  Location and Zoning Maps, Application, Annexation Ordinances, Public Notice, 
Mailing List and Ordinance. 

8



CITY OF BELOIT ZONING MAP  

9



TOWN OF TURTLE ZONING MAP

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



ORDINANCE NO. 3852 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 
ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF BELOIT 

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 

Section 1. The Zoning District Map of the City of Beloit, mentioned in the Zoning Code, Chapter 

19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, is amended as follows: 

The following described lands are hereby assigned permanent R-1A, Single Family Residential District: 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOT 150, A RESUBDIVISION OF OUTLOT A, AND LOTS 34 TO 54, OF 

TURTLE RIDGE, BEING PART OF THE NE 1/4 OF THE SW 1/4 OF SECTION 30, TOWN 1 NORTH, 

RANGE 13 EAST, OF THE 4TH P.M., TOWN OF TURTLE, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN.  

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 150 OF A RE 

SUBDIVISION OF OUTLOT A, AND LOTS 34 TO 54; THENCE NORTH 57°30'00" EAST ALONG 

THE NORTH LINE OF AFORESAID LOT 150 A DISTANCE OF 70.20 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 

43°12'00" EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF AFORESAID LOT 150 A DISTANCE OF 243.00 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY A DISTANCE OF 108.49 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF 

AFORESAID LOT 150 AND ARC OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 824.79 FEET 

AND A CHORD BEARING SOUTH 48°32'10" WEST A DISTANCE OF 108.41 FEET; THENCE 

NORTH 34°21'00" WEST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF AFORESAID LOT 150 A DISTANCE OF 

256.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 0.511 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

A/K/A 2221 MILWAUKEE RD 

Section 2.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage and publication. 

Adopted this ____ day of ___________, 2024. 

City Council of the City of Beloit 

________________________________________ 
Kevin D. Leavy, Council President 

Attest: 

______________________________________ 
Marcy J Granger, City Clerk-Treasurer 

17



Published this ____ day of _________, 2024 

Effective this ____ day of _________, 2024 

01-611100-5231- 

18



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  August 7, 2024 

Agenda Item:  4.a. 

File Number:  CSM-2024-15 

General Information 

Applicant:  Jeff Garde, Combs and Associates, Inc. 
Owner:  Jacquelyn Dorr 
Address:  Parcel 6-19-372B on the 11,000 Block of S. State Line Road 
Jurisdiction: Town of Turtle
Applicant’s Request: Approval of a One-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map (CSM) 

Staff Analysis 

Proposed Land Division: The intent of the proposed extraterritorial CSM is to subdivide 15.47 
acres of woodland from a larger 28-acre parcel, the remainder of which is cropland. The property 
owner has a number of parcels in this area, and intends to sell the newly created Lot 1, which 
could become a future homesite if “acceptable means of wastewater disposal is approved by the 
necessary governmental agencies.” The proposed Lot 1 features mature woodlands, an 
intermittent stream, and a 30-foot-wide ingress and egress easement along the north property 
line for the property owner to the east, which connects to State Line Road through the eight 
foot+/- strip of land north of the 1961 Shimeall survey as shown on the CSM.  Additionally, a 33-
foot private road primarily through the adjacent property to the north, also covers the eight 
foot+/- strip to the east line of the Shimeall survey.  According to the applicant, the strip exists 
based on mapping the owner’s deed, and excepting the Shimeall survey as described in the 
recorded deeds.  This results in a strip of land that is owned by Jacquelyn Dorr that lies north of 
the Shimeall survey, and therefore part of the proposed Lot 1. The applicant indicated that the 
final CSM will have a note that Lot 1 is subject to any and all easements, agreements, covenants 
and restrictions recorded or unrecorded. 

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  The subject property is zoned A-E, Exclusive Agricultural 
District, and is surrounded by A-E parcels to the north, east, and south. To the west, the property 
is zoned R-R, Rural Residential, all within the Town of Turtle. The Town requires new lots to be a 
minimum of 3 acres and 100 feet in width for A-G, General Agricultural District. According to the 
applicant, a zoning map amendment is being requested to rezone Lot 1 to A-G to comply with 
the Town’s Zoning Ordinance lot area requirements. The City does not have extraterritorial 
zoning authority in the Town. 

City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land 
Use Map recommends agricultural land uses for the subject property. Regardless, land use 
cannot be considered when reviewing Extraterritorial CSM applications according to state law. 

19



Review Agent Comments:  The proposed CSM was distributed to the Review Agents.  No 
concerns or comments were received. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached one-lot 
Extraterritorial CSM for the property located on the 11,000 block of S. State Line Road in the 
Town of Turtle, subject to the following condition: 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year 
of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

ATTACHMENTS:  Location and Town Zoning Map, Certified Survey Map, Application, Site 
Assessment Checklist and Supplementary Information, and Resolution. 

20



LOCATION AND TOWN ZONING MAP 

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



RESOLUTION 2024-015 

APPROVING A ONE-LOT EXTRATERRITORIAL CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP FOR THE PROPERTY 
LOCATED ON THE 11,000 BLOCK OF S. STATE LINE ROAD IN THE TOWN OF TURTLE 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City 
of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan Commission 
of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land 
within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located on the 
11,000 block of S. State Line Road in the Town of Turtle, containing 15.47 acres, more or less, is 
located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Beloit; and 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached one-
lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

PART OF THE SW ¼ OF THE NE ¼ OF SECTION 34, T. 1 N., R. 13 E., OF THE 4TH P.M., TOWN 
OF TURTLE, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit does 
hereby conditionally approve the attached one-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map for the 
property located on the 11,000 block of S. State Line Road in the Town of Turtle, subject to the 
following condition: 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one 
year of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

Adopted this 7th day of August, 2024. 

Plan Commission 

Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 

ATTEST: 

Julie Christensen, 
Community Development Director

28


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2024-793 - Attachment
	2024-756 - Attachment
	2024-782 - Attachment

